

Sec. 2. Section 68B.22, subsection 4, Code 2003, is amended by adding the following new paragraph:

NEW PARAGRAPH. r. Gifts of food, beverage, and entertainment received by public officials or public employees at a reception where every member of the general assembly has been invited to attend, when the reception takes place during a regular session of the general assembly. A sponsor of a reception under this paragraph shall file a report disclosing the total amount expended, including in-kind expenditures, on food, beverage, and entertainment for the reception. The report shall be filed with the secretary of the senate, the chief clerk of the house, and the board within five business days following the date of the reception.

Sec. 3. Section 68B.38, Code 2003, is amended to read as follows:
68B.38 LOBBYIST'S CLIENT REPORTING.

1. a. On or before ~~January 31 and July 31~~ 1 of each year, a lobbyist's client shall file with the general assembly or board a report that contains information on all salaries, fees, and retainers paid by the lobbyist's client to the lobbyist for lobbying purposes during the preceding ~~six~~ twelve calendar months.

b. Reports by a lobbyist's clients shall be filed with the same entity with which the lobbyist filed the lobbyist's registration.

2. a. The report ~~due January 31~~ shall include a cumulative total of all salaries, fees, retainers, and reimbursements of expenses paid to the lobbyist for lobbying activities during the preceding calendar year.

b. The secretary of the senate, chief clerk of the house, and the board shall develop forms to implement this section.

Approved May 30, 2003

CHAPTER 162

RECREATIONAL ACTIVITIES IN DESIGNATED AREAS OR ON PUBLIC PROPERTY — LIABILITY LIMITED

H.F. 584

AN ACT providing for exceptions to liability for certain activities.

Be It Enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Iowa:

Section 1. NEW SECTION. 321G.23A RECREATIONAL RIDING AREA — LIMITATION OF LIABILITY OF PRIOR LANDOWNERS.

Prior owners of land on which an all-terrain vehicle recreational riding area is established, maintained, or operated owe no duty of care to keep the land safe for entry or use by persons operating an all-terrain vehicle or to give any warning of a dangerous condition, use, structure, or activity on such premises that would make the land unsafe for all-terrain vehicle usage.

Sec. 2. Section 670.4, subsections 14 and 15, Code 2003, are amended to read as follows:

14. Any claim based upon or arising out of a claim of negligent design or specification, negligent adoption of design or specification, or negligent construction or reconstruction of a public facility designed for purposes of skateboarding, ~~or in-line skating, bicycling, unicycling, scootering, river rafting, canoeing, or kayaking~~ that was constructed or reconstructed, reasonably

~~and in good faith~~, in accordance with a generally recognized engineering or safety ~~standard, criteria, standards~~ or design ~~theory theories~~ in existence at the time of the construction or reconstruction.

15. Any claim based upon or arising out of an act or omission of an officer or employee of the municipality or the municipality's governing body by a person ~~skateboarding, or in-line skating, bicycling, unicycling, scootering, river rafting, canoeing, or kayaking~~ on public property when the person knew or reasonably should have known that the ~~skateboarding, or in-line skating, bicycling, unicycling, scootering, river rafting, canoeing, or kayaking~~ created a substantial risk of injury to the person and was voluntarily in the place of risk. The exemption from liability contained in this subsection shall only apply to claims for injuries or damage resulting from the risks inherent in the activities of ~~skateboarding, or in-line skating, bicycling, unicycling, scootering, river rafting, canoeing, or kayaking~~.

Approved May 30, 2003

CHAPTER 163

MANURE APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS

H.F. 644

AN ACT providing for manure application requirements, providing for fees, making penalties applicable, and providing effective dates.

Be It Enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Iowa:

Section 1. Section 459.102, subsection 11, Code 2003, is amended by striking the subsection, and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

11. "Commercial manure service" means a sole proprietor or business association as defined in section 9H.1, engaged in the business of transporting, handling, storing, or applying manure for a fee.

Sec. 2. Section 459.102, Code 2003, is amended by adding the following new subsections:
NEW SUBSECTION. 11A. "Commercial manure service representative" means a natural person who is any of the following:

a. A manager of a commercial manure service. As used in this paragraph a "manager" is a person who is actively involved in the operation of a commercial manure service and takes an important part in making management decisions substantially contributing to affecting the success of the commercial manure service.

b. An employee, agent, or contractor of a commercial manure service, if the person is engaged in transporting, handling, storing, or applying manure on behalf of the commercial manure service.

NEW SUBSECTION. 15A. "Confinement site manure applicator" means a person, other than a commercial manure service or a commercial manure service representative, who applies manure on land if the manure originates from a manure storage structure.

NEW SUBSECTION. 19A. "Director" means the director of the department of natural resources.

NEW SUBSECTION. 23A. "Family member" means a person related to another person as parent, grandparent, child, grandchild, sibling, or a spouse of such a related person.